




_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Bois D’Arc MUD – Minutes of the Special Board Meeting on November 20, 2020  Page 1 of 2  

BOIS D’ARC MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
14101 E FM 1396 

HONEY GROVE, TEXAS 75446 
(903) 378-7361 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

DATE: Friday, November 20, 2020 at 9:00 AM 

LOCATION: Allens Chapel Community Center, NW corner of CR 2980 and FM 1396, Honey Grove, Texas 

 

1. Call to Order and Declaration of Quorum. 

The meeting was called to order by Bob Payne at 9:02 a.m. and a quorum was declared with the 
following Board Directors present: Bob Payne, Donna Ryser, Brad Lane, J.W. Caraway, and Larry 
Franklin.  Directors Rhonda Grubbs Cunningham and Gary Vincent were absent. 

District staff present: Office Manager Melinda Gibbs and Field Manager Hayden Lane. 
Consultants present: Engineer Jacob Dupuis and Attorney Maria Huynh. 
Visitors present: Billy Bob Stephens and Dustin Sparkman. 
 

2. Public Comments (Limit of 3 minutes per speaker). 

None. 

 

3. Discuss and take action regarding water service to 2244 E. US Hwy 82, Dodd City, TX owned by 
Dustin Sparkman.  

Mr. Sparkman spoke to the Board and District’s staff and consultants regarding non-standard service 
requirements to receive water to his property. No action was needed or taken, as the District’s 
procedure for non-standard service will be followed. 

 

4. Discuss and take action on consent items consisting of:  

a. Minutes of the October 16, 2020 Board Meeting 

After review, Donna Ryser made the motion to approve the Minutes as presented, and Brad 
Lane seconded. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously. 

b. District’s monthly financials for October 2020 

After review, Brad Lane made the motion to approve the Minutes as presented, and Donna 
Ryser seconded. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously. 
 

5. Update and/or presentation by the District’s Engineer including status of the Lower Bois D’Arc 
Reservoir Projects / North Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD) and other District projects.  



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Bois D’Arc MUD – Minutes of the Special Board Meeting on November 20, 2020  Page 2 of 2  

Engineer Jacob Dupuis updated the Board with the status of the remaining NTMWD Projects. 

a. Discuss and take action to approve Change Order #2 from McWhorter Backhoe Service for 
Waterline Projects on CR 2950 & CR 2900. 

After presentation and review, Donna Ryser made the motion to approve the Change Order 
as presented, and J.W. Caraway seconded. After a vote, the motion passed unanimously. 

b. Discuss and take action to approve Pay Application #4 from McWhorter Backhoe Service for 
Waterline Projects on CR 2950 & CR 2900. 

After presentation and review, Donna Ryser made the motion to approve the Pay Application 
as presented, and Brad Lane seconded. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously. 

c. Discuss and take action to award bid for tank inspection, rehabilitation, and painting of the 
District’s four ground storage tanks. 

After review of the qualified bids, including presentation and recommendation by the 
District’s Engineers, Larry Franklin made the motion to award the bid to CTEX Construction as 
presented, and Donna Ryser seconded. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously. 
 

6. Discuss and take action regarding Fourth Amendment of the Settlement Agreement between 
NTMWD and the District. 

After presentation by Jacob Dupuis and review, J.W. Caraway made the motion to approve the Fourth 
Amendment as presented, which include the proposed revisions by the District’s Engineers. Larry 
Franklin seconded the motion.  A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously. 

 

7. Discuss monthly reports and updates from staff and consultants, including Engineer’s Report, 
Managers’ Reports, Policies and Procedures, Budget Committee, and Attorney’s Report. 

Engineer reported:  company contacted for possible removal of Carson Tower provides this type of 
work nationally and will need to coordinate timing for efficiency with other removal projects nearby. 

Field Manager reported: Dodd City has fixed its well but is not providing water to the District. 

 

8. Discuss and take action regarding employees’ notice of leave/vacation/paid time off (PTO). 

After discussion, the item was tabled.  Attorney will prepare a resolution for next month. 

 

9. Recess into Executive Session pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code Section 551.071 Consultations with 
Attorney and Section 551.074 Deliberations regarding Personnel Matters.  Reconvene into Open 
Session.  

At 9:46 AM, the Board entered Executive Session as announced by Bob Payne.  At 9:51 AM, the Board 
reconvened into Open Session. 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Bois D’Arc MUD – Minutes of the Special Board Meeting on November 20, 2020  Page 3 of 2  

a. Discuss and take action regarding vacation/PTO of Office Manager Melinda Gibbs.  

After discussion, Donna Ryser made the motion to approve paying Melinda Gibbs the 
accumulated paid time off (PTO) in 2020 exceeding the rollover amount of hours indicated in 
the Employee Handbook, due to the extenuating circumstances of COVID-19 and the inability 
of the part-time employee Robin Shipman to work. Brad Lane seconded the motion.  After a 
vote was taken, the motion passed unanimously. 

 

10. Adjournment. 

Donna Ryser made the motion to adjourn, seconded by Larry Franklin. A vote was taken and the 
motion passed unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 9:56 AM. 

 

 

 

APPROVED by the Board of Directors of Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District, Fannin County, 
Texas, on this 18th day of December, 2020. 

[District seal] 

 

________________________________ 
       Gary Vincent, Secretary-Treasurer 
 

 











1 From: 11/1/20 To: 11/30/2020

1 Furnish & Install 8" SDR 21 PVC waterline w/ appurtenances. 13,365 $16.00
0.00

2
Furnish & Install 14" SDR 26 PVC waterline and 8" SDR 21 PVC 
yelomine carrier pipe w/ appurtenances.

300 $45.00
0.00

3
Furnish & Install county road bore w/ 14" SDR 26 yelomine pipe 
encasement & 8" SDR 21 yelominecarrier pipe w/ appurtenances.

150 $115.00
0.00

4
Furnish & Install FM road bore w/ 14" Std, scgedyke steel 
encasement & 8" SDR 21 yelomine carrier pipe.

185 $215.00
0.00

5
Furnish & Install creek bore with 14" SDR 26 yelomine pipe 
encasement wand 8" SDR 21 yelomine carrier pipe w/ 
appurtenances. 

1,350 $115.00 280.00 280.00
32,200.00

6 Open cut & repair driveway. 75 $25.00
0.00

7 Furnish & Install 8" gate valve w/ appurtenances. 15 $1,500.00
0.00

8 Furnish & Install flush valve assembly w/ appurtenances. 1 $1,300.00
0.00

9 Connect new 8" waterline to existing 6" waterline. 1 $1,500.00
0.00

10 Connect new 8" waterline to existing 8" waterline. 1 $1,200.00
0.00

11 Furnish & Install ductile iron fittings w/ appurtenances. .5 $6,000.00
0.00

12 Furnish & Install tracer wire with appurtenances. 13,665 $0.25
0.00

13 Furnish & Install test station w/ appurtenances. 15 $100.00
0.00

14 Furnish & Install trench safety. 1 $500.00
0.00

15 Furnish & Install erosion control. 350 $5.00
0.00

16 Clearing of waterine installation. 4,900 $2.50
0.00

17 Mobilization, bonding, and insurance. 1 $9,000.00 0.78 0.78
7,020.00

TOTALS $39,220.00

$39,220.00
$183,309.72
$222,529.72
$11,126.49

$0.00
$211,403.23

Contractor certifies that to the best of its knowledge: 1) all previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract have been applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in 
connection with Work covered by prior Applications for Payment; 3) title of all Work materials and equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for Payment will pass to Owner at time of payment free and 
clear of all Liens, security interests and encumbrances (except such as are covered by a Bond acceptable to Owner indemnifying Owner against any such Liens, security interest or encumbrances); and 3) all Work covered by this Application for 
Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not defective.

Less Previous Payments:
Amount Due This Application:

Engineer Signature and Date:

Contractor Signature and Date:

Owner Signature and Date:

On-Site Observer Signature and Date:

Project Name:

Underwood, Inc.
1899 Recreation Rd. 3

Bonham, TX 75418
903-583-2731

PARTIAL PAYMENT REQUEST

Pay Request No.
Name of Owner:

Owner's Address:
Engineer:

Engineer's Address: 118 McKinney St, Farmersville, TX 75442

Bois D' Arc MUD
14101 E FM 1396, Honey Grove, TX 75446
Daniel & Brown, Inc.

Hwy 82 Waterline Improvements

Less 5% Retainage:

Quantity 
Completed 
This Month

Original 
Bid 

Quantity

Project Number:

Completed and Stored to Date:
Stored Material:

Item No.
Total 

Quantity 
Completed

Total Value 
Completed

Original 
Bid Unit 

Price
Description of Item

Completed to Date:

Contract Price (Including Change Orders): $499,406.25

12/10/2020



Description Unit Unit Value Units in Storage Value in Storage
14" SDR 26 CL 160 Yelomine Restraint Joint Pipe LF $33.60 1520 $51,072.00
8" SDR 21 CL 200 IPS Yelomine PVC Pipe LF $14.12 2020 $28,522.40
15" X 14' SDR 26 HW Sewer Piper LF $20.88 210 $4,384.80
8" SDR 21 PVC Pipe CL200 LF $7.20 8900 $64,080.00
8" X 15" Center Restrained PE Casing Spacer (8" SDR 21 to 15" SDREA $29.44 52 $1,530.88
8" X 14" Center Restrained PE Casing Spacer (8" SDR 21 CL200 
yelomine to 14" .250 wall stell casing) EA $23.68 33 $781.44
8" X 14" Center Restrained PE Casing Spacer (8" SDR 21 CL200 
yelomine to 14" SDR 26 CL 160 yelomine) EA $23.68 288 $6,819.84
8" X 14" Wrap Around End Seal EA $56.56 22 $1,244.32
8" X 15" Wrap Around End Seal EA $61.44 2 $122.88
2" RW IB Threaded Gate Valve EA $285.73 1 $285.73
6" MJ X FLG Gate Valve RW EA $597.86 1 $597.86
8" MJ Gate Valve EA $925.18 15 $13,877.70
#77 Maniguard Post Flushing Hydrant 4' Bury EA $660.00 1 $660.00
#77 Mushroom Lid EA $14.40 13 $187.20
8" X 6" MJ Reducer EA $58.45 1 $58.45
8" X 12" MJ L/P Sleeve EA $101.54 3 $304.62
8" MJ 90 Ell EA $100.27 1 $100.27
8" MJ 45 EA $81.92 11 $901.12
8" MJ 22-1/2 EA $79.79 1 $79.79
6" Tufgrip Wedge Restraint Pack PK $43.48 2 $86.96
8" Tufgrip Wedge Restraint Pack PK $58.66 63 $3,695.58
14 GA Solid CCS Tracer Wire Blue LF $0.12 14000 $1,680.00
#6 Dryconn Yellow Wire Connectors $1.80 30 $54.00
6" FLG PKG Set - 304/18.8 SS PK $30.00 1 $30.00
2" X 6" Brass Nipple EA $28.79 2 $57.58
8" X 2" NPT Epoxy coated Saddle EA $101.59 1 $101.59
6" SS Tappin Sleeve EA $529.91 1 $529.91
2" X 100' Roll Wrap Tape EA $7.20 12 $86.40
2" X 1000' Detectable Tape Blue EA $28.80 14 $403.20
#5 Calcium Hypochlorite EA $21.60 6 $129.60
66" Blue Carsonite Fiberglass Marker EA $40.80 7 $285.60
Little Fink Teste Station EA $27.60 15 $414.00
Valve Lifting Device EA $144.00 1 $144.00

0 $0.00
0 $0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

TOTAL VALUE IN STORAGE $183,309.72

STORED MATERIALS SUMMARY



 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AND BOIS D’ARC MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
 

This Fourth Amendment (the “Fourth Amendment”) to that certain contract entitled “Settlement 
Agreement Between the North Texas Municipal Water District and Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District” 
(the “Settlement Agreement”), as amended, is made and entered into by and between the North Texas 
Municipal Water District (“NTMWD” or the “District”) and Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District (the 
“MUD”) (collectively, the “Parties”) as of this _____ day of __________________, 2020 (the “Fourth 
Amendment Effective Date”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2014, NTMWD and the MUD entered into the Settlement 
Agreement, in part, to mitigate the potential impacts of Lower Bois d’Arc Creek Reservoir Project (the 
“Reservoir Project”), now known as Bois d’Arc Lake, on the MUD’s water supply system and its ability to 
service certain customers on the north side of the Reservoir Project;  

WHEREAS, on June 22, 2017, NTMWD and the MUD entered into the First Amendment to the 
Settlement Agreement between the North Texas Municipal Water District and Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility 
District (the “First Amendment”), on February 22, 2018, entered into the Second Amendment to the 
Settlement Agreement between the North Texas Municipal Water District and Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility 
District (the “Second Amendment”), and on April 25, 2019, entered into the Third Amendment to the 
Settlement Agreement between the North Texas Municipal Water District and Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility 
District (the “Third Amendment”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, within sixty (60) calendar days following the  
issuance of a Clean Water Act Section 404 permit (“404 Permit”) from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
(“USACE”) and a permit to appropriate state water in the Red River Basin and to authorize an interbasin 
transfer of state water to the Trinity River and Sulphur River basins (the “Water Right”) from the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”), NTMWD agreed to tender a onetime payment to the 
MUD to mitigate impacts to the MUD; 

WHEREAS, NTMWD received the 404 Permit on February 2, 2018 and commenced construction 
on April 27, 2018;  

WHEREAS, part of the Reservoir Project includes the design and construction of the Bois d’Arc 
Lake Operations Center (the “BDL Operations Center”); 

WHEREAS, NTMWD requires water service and fire flow capacities at the BDL Operations 
Center and the MUD desires to provide such water service and fire flow capacities; 

WHEREAS, the MUD extended a 6-inch water line located near FM 897 (the “FM 897 Line”) to 
provide water service to the BDL Operations Center; 

WHEREAS, the FM 897 Line as currently extended cannot provide fire flow capacities to the BDL 
Operations Center;  

WHEREAS, the MUD plans to supplement the water supply to the Community of Lannius with a 
new 6-inch water line (the “US 82 Line”) that will also supply water flows to the FM 897 Line; and 

WHEREAS, the MUD desires to upsize the US 82 Line to an 8-inch water line (the “US 82 Line 
Improvement Project”) to supply the minimum sufficient water flow and pressure to the FM 897 Line to 
enable the FM 897 Line to provide fire flow capacities to the BDL Operations Center.  



 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements contained herein, 
the sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree to the Fourth Amendment as 
follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

1. Section A.3 of the Settlement Agreement, as amended, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with 
the following:  
 
3. Extension of Water Line and Services to Bois d’Arc Lake Operations Center 
 
NTMWD has compensated the MUD in the amount of $75,840.00 for the extension of the FM 897 
Line to NTMWD’s BDL Operations Center. Attached as Exhibit 4 is an itemized list of the costs 
associated with the extension of the line.   
 
NTMWD further agrees to compensate the MUD in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00 from 
funds provided by Austin Bridge and Road, a contractor for the Reservoir Project, for the US 82 
Line Improvement Project within sixty (60) days following receipt of a final invoice from the MUD 
for the work associated with the project.   
 
To receive water service and fire flow capacities at the BDL Operations Center from the MUD, 
NTMWD agrees to submit to the MUD a completed MUD Non-Standard Service Application.  
Attached as Exhibit 5 is a copy of the Non-Standard Service Application.   
 

2. Section B.3 of the Settlement Agreement, as amended, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with 
the following: 
 
3. Extension of Water Line and Services to Bois d’Arc Lake Operations Center 
 
The MUD agrees to design and construct the extension of the FM 897 Line to NTMWD’s BDL 
Operations Center consistent with Exhibit 4.  To enable the FM 897 Line to provide both water 
service and fire flow capacities to the BDL Operations Center, the MUD agrees to construct the US 
82 Line Improvement Project.  The MUD agrees that the US 82 Line Improvement Project shall 
enable the FM 897 Line to supply fire flow capacities to the BDL Operations Center by providing 
a minimum sufficient water flow and pressure to the BDL Operations Center of 250 gallons per 
minute and 55 pounds per square inch.   
 
The MUD further agrees to provide water service and fire flow capacities to the BDL Operations 
Center.  Within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving the Non-Standard Service Application from 
NTMWD, the MUD agrees to enter into a Non-Standard Service Contract with NTMWD to provide 
water service and fire flow capacities to the BDL Operations Center as provided herein.  The MUD 
agrees that the payments made by NTMWD in Section A.3 of the Settlement Agreement, as 
amended, includes the Service Investigation Fee required by the Non-Standard Service Application 
and NTMWD shall not be required to make any payment in excess of the payments required by 
Section A.3 for the provision of water service and fire flow capacities to the BDL Operations 
Center.  The FM 897 Line should provide both water service and fire flow capacities to the BDL 
Operations Center by early March 2021.   
 

3. Each individual signing this Fourth Amendment hereby confirms that he/she has the authority to 
execute this Fourth Amendment on behalf of the Party indicated by the signature. 



 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

 
4. Except as to the extent amended hereby, the Settlement Agreement, as amended, remains in effect 

and is hereby renewed, ratified, and reaffirmed. In the event of any conflict between the terms of 
this Fourth Amendment and the terms of the Settlement Agreement, as amended, this Fourth 
Amendment shall control.  
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties hereto acting under authority of their respective governing 
bodies have caused this Fourth Amendment to be duly executed in several counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute an original, all as of the day and year first above written, which is the Effective Date of this 
Fourth Amendment.  

 

 

NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 

 

 

Date:_________________________  By: __________________________________________ 

 Larry Parks, President of the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOIS D’ARC MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

 

 

 

Date:_________________________  By: __________________________________________ 

 Rhonda Cunningham, President of the Board 

  



 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT 4 
  



 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT 5 
 



ITEM 5 
 
 
At the time of posting, the Non-standard Service Contract has not been finalized, as verification of 
information is pending. 
 
 
The Board will receive a copy of the contract prior to the Board Meeting. 
 
 
If you would like to see a copy, please request by sending an email to Office Manager Melinda Gibbs at 
melinda@boisdarcmud.com 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:melinda@boisdarcmud.com














































































































































____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 2020-003 – adopting the District’s Annual Budget for FY2021 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-003 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BOIS D’ARC 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT, FANNIN COUNTY, TEXAS (DISTRICT), 
ADOPTING THE DISTRICT’S ANNUAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2021 AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021 
(FY2021); AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District, Fannin County, Texas (the 

"District") is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, and operating pursuant to 
Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code, among others; 
 

WHEREAS, Texas Water Code § 49.057 requires the Board of Directors to adopt 
an annual budget for the District prior to the beginning of the District’s fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, the annual budget for the District’s fiscal year beginning January 1, 
2021 and ending December 31, 2021 (FY2021), attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated for all purposes by reference herein, was presented to the District’s Board 
of Directors at the monthly board meeting, open to the general public, and held on the 
date indicated below. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
BOIS D'ARC MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT, FANNIN COUNTY, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1. Adoption. The District’s Annual Budget for FY2021 as found in the 
attached Exhibit A (the “Annual Budget”) is hereby approved and adopted by the District’s 
Board of Directors, and all expenditures of District funds during FY2021 will be made in 
accordance with the Annual Budget and any subsequent amendments as approved and 
adopted by the Board of Directors. 
 

Section 2. Effective Date.   This Resolution and the District’s Annual Budget for 
FY2021 is effective January 1, 2021. 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Bois D’Arc Municipal 
Utility District on this the 18th day of December, 2020. 
  
  [District seal] 
             
       ________________________________ 
       Rhonda Grubbs Cunningham, President 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Gary Vincent, Secretary    Maria Huynh, Attorney



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

TO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-003 
 

 



Income
4001    Water Sales - Customer 711,000$               
4002 Late Charges 17,400$                 
4006 Meter Sets 51,800$                 
4007 Reconnect / Disconnect 1,125$                   
4008 Road Bore / Crossing 6,585$                   
4009 Line Extension Standard 9,300$                   
4010 Transfers 3,925$                   
4012 Returned Check Fee 550$                       
4014 Miscellaneous 1,850$                   
4015 Miscellaneous Fee / Charges 1,485$                   

Total Income 805,020$               

Expense (Non-Operating)  
 5065.3  LBCR Engineering  148,200$               

J.D. Note 5,460$                   
Bond 165,800$               

Total Expense 319,460$               

Expense (Operating)
5001 General Operating Supplies 59,360$                 
 5002 Salaries 194,700$               
5003 Payroll Tax 15,050$                 
5005 Water Purchased 24,000$                 
5006 Water Samples 1,870$                   
5007 Road Bore Expense -$                            
5012 Repairs & Maintenance 8,950$                   
5019 Automobile Maintenance 5,775$                   
5020 Office Supplies 12,675$                 
5026 Bank Fees 535$                       
5029 TCEQ System Fees 2,900$                   
5030 USDA Line Fees 350$                       
5032 Accounting Services 16,380$                 
5033 Legal Services 26,450$                 
5034 License, Dues, Fees 10,100$                 
5035 Telephone 4,700$                   
5037 Contract Labor -$                            
5038 Fuel 10,250$                 
5040 Engineering Services 5,680$                   
5041 Chemicals 7,850$                   
5043 Advertising & Promotions 650$                       
5047 Insurance 11,400$                 
5048 TML IEBP Employee Health Ins. 42,000$                 
5050 Utilites 55,740$                 
5051 Small Equipment Purchased 3,000$                   
5052 Miscellaneous 1,450$                   
5053 Travel 610$                       
5054 Meals 470$                       
5055 Training 950$                       
 5056 Simple IRA 4,300$                   

Total Operating Expense 528,145$               

BOIS D'ARC MUD
    Annual Budget for FY 2021



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 2020-004 – amending the District’s Employee Handbook, Section 7.02(f) Page 1 
 regarding notice for using and taking PTO 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-004 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BOIS D’ARC 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT, FANNIN COUNTY, TEXAS (THE 
DISTRICT), AMENDING SECTION 7.02(f) OF THE DISTRICT’S 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK FOR USING AND TAKING PAID TIME OFF TO 
INCLUDE NOTICE REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND SAVINGS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility District, Fannin County, Texas (the 
“District”) is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, operating pursuant to Chapters 
49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code, among other governing statutes; 
 

WHEREAS, Section 7.02(f) of the District’s Employee Handbook provides for 
requirements when using and taking paid time off (PTO); 
 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that it is in the best interest of the District to amend 
Section 7.02(f) of the District’s Employee Handbook to provide requirements for notice 
when using and taking PTO, as provided in the Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 
by reference for all purposes herein.   

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
BOIS D’ARC MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1.  Amendment. Section 7.02(f) of the District’s Employee Handbook, is 
hereby approved, amended and restated as provided in the attached Exhibit A.   
 
 SECTION 2.  Severability. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, 
clause, phrase or section of this Resolution be adjudged or held to be void or 
unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Resolution which shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 3.  Conflicts and Savings.  All resolutions and provisions of resolutions 
of the District in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution be, and the same are hereby, 
repealed, and all resolutions and provisions of resolutions of the District not in conflict 
with the provisions of this Resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. Effective Date. This Resolution is effective immediately from and 
after its passage.   
 
 
 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 2020-004 – amending the District’s Employee Handbook, Section 7.02(f) Page 2 
 regarding notice for using and taking PTO 
 
 

 PASSED and ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Bois D’Arc Municipal Utility 
District on this 18th day of December, 2020. 
 
 [District seal]     
  
 
       ________________________________ 
       Rhonda Grubbs Cunningham, President 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________  ________________________________ 
Gary Vincent, Secretary    Maria Huynh, Attorney 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

TO  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-004



 

Section 7.02 Paid Time Off (PTO). 
 
… 
 
(f) Using or Taking PTO. Except in the case of sudden illness or emergency, PTO 

requests must be submitted at least two (2) weeks in advance to the General 
Manager and must be approved by the General Manager. Employees may use 
time from their PTO bank in either half-day or full-day increments up to a 
maximum of 2 weeks of continuous PTO. The General Manager will make every 
effort to approve PTO requests at the desired times but the District reserves the 
right to deny or reschedule PTO due to business needs. Only accrued PTO may 
be taken. Employees may not take PTO in advance (i.e., time off taken in excess 
of an employee’s PTO accrual balance). 

 

 


	Item 9 - Resolution 2020-003 Adopting District's Annual Budget FY2021.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2020-003
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BOIS D'ARC MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT, FANNIN COUNTY, TEXAS THAT:
	Resolution 2020-003 Ex A Annual Budget FY2021.pdf
	Sheet1





